
	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	

	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	

	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	
	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	

	 	

	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	

	

Entry 1 School Information and Cover Page 

(New schools that were not open for instruction for 

the 2018-19 school year are not required to complete 

or submit an annual report this year). 
Created: 07/19/2019 • Last updated: 08/19/2019 

Please be advised that you will need to complete this cover page (including signatures) before all of the 

other tasks assigned to you by your authorizer are visible on your task page. While completing this cover 
page task, please ensure that you select the correct authorizer (as of June 30, 2019) or you may not be 

assigned the correct tasks. 

BASIC INFORMATION 

a. SCHOOL NAME CHARTER SCHOOL OF INQUIRY 

(Select name from the drop down menu) 

a1. Popular School Name (No response) 
(Optional) 

b. CHARTER AUTHORIZER (As of Regents Authorized Charter School 
June 30th, 2019) 

Please select the correct authorizer as of 
June 30, 2019 or you may not be 

assigned the correct tasks. 

c. DISTRICT / CSD OF LOCATION Buffalo 

d. DATE OF INITIAL CHARTER 06/2014 

e. DATE FIRST OPENED FOR 08/2015 

INSTRUCTION 

1 / 9 



	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	

	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	

	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	

f. APPROVED SCHOOL MISSION (Regents, NYCDOE, and Buffalo BOE authorized 

schools only) 

MISSION STATEMENT 

“The Charter School of Inquiry is an innovative school where children achieve breakthrough outcomes by 

pursuing questions, thinking creatively, and learning together as a culturally empowered community.” 

g. KEY DESIGN ELEMENTS (Regents, NYCDOE, and Buffalo BOE authorized schools 

only) 
KEY DESIGN ELEMENTS (Brief heading followed by a description of each Key Design Elements 

(KDE). KDEs are those general aspects of the school that are innovative or unique to the school’s 

mission and goals, are core to the school’s overall design, and are critical to its success. The 

design elements may include a specific content area focus; unique student populations to be 

served; specific educational programs or pedagogical approaches; unique calendar, schedule, or 
configurations of students and staff; and/or innovative organizational structures and systems. 

Variable 1 

Variable 2 

Variable 3 

Rigorous, Inquiry based Curriculum 

Inquiry is the foundation of CSI’s instructional philosophy.
Raising questions, conducting investigations, interpreting
and communicating are how CSI children will learn. CSI will
use compelling, and relevant interdisciplinary topics to foster
children’s acquisition and retention of content knowledge,
while fostering their creativity and critical thinking skills and
a lifelong love of learning. Emphasis will be placed on
firsthand investigations of their immediate surroundings as a
way of infusing opportunities to learn from direct experience
into all areas of the curriculum 

Academic Focus on Literacy 

Recognizing that literacy is the foundation for success in
school and in life, and that children must “learn to read” by
3rd grade in order to “read to learn” in subsequent grades,
our academic focus is for every child at CSI to read
proficiently, fluently and with good comprehension by the
end of third grade. Intentional reading instruction will be
based on scientifically based reading research. 

Responsive Classroom (RC) 

Responsive Classroom is an evidence based approach for
elementary school teaching and learning that recognizes
that the social curriculum is as important as the academic
curriculum, that how children learn is as important as what
they learn, and that the greatest cognitive growth occurs
when children interact with others about what they have
experienced. RC will help to build a culture of community
and mutual respect. 

2 / 9 



	 	

	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	

	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	

	 	

	 	

	 	

	 	

Variable 4 Collaborative Team teaching 

Collaborative team teaching takes place in every classroom
with a teacher and teaching assistant, supported by a
literacy coach and an inquiry coach. Special Education and
ESL teachers will provide special attention to designated
children. Interns working on their Master’s degrees in
Literacy (B 6) from local colleges and universities will be
recruited to work as part of the instructional team in helping
children who need individual or small group attention.
Gradelevel teams will collaborate on developing curriculum
aligned with the CCSS, measuring student growth, and
developing strategies for struggling students to meet their
academic goals. 

Variable 5 Data driven Instruction and Evidence of Performance 

This is instituted through progress monitoring in reading,
literacy, math and science to inform responsive instruction,
and to create IIP’s for each child. Rubrics, student portfolios,
performance tasks and projects for evaluating multi
disciplinary thematic units are also utilized as evidence of
student work and progress. 

Variable 6 African and African American History and Culture 

CSI founders feel strongly that African American children,
and indeed all children, need to gain a better understanding
of African and African American peoples  their history,
culture, and contributions to the world. This knowledge is
necessary to contest images in the dominant culture that
breed feelings of inadequacy and a diminished sense of self
worth in many African American children, and will give all of
CSI’s children perspectives that they do not ordinarily get. 

Variable 7 Integrated Arts 

Integrated arts will help students to learn the disciplines of
visual arts and music and explore their personal involvement
in an extended day enrichment program. Creating,
interpreting, and responding in the arts stimulates the
imagination and encourages innovation and creative
risktaking in children. 

Variable 8 (No response) 

Variable 9 (No response) 

Variable 10 (No response) 
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Need additional space for No 

variables 

h. SCHOOL WEB ADDRESS (URL) http://csicharter.org/ 

i. TOTAL MAX APPROVED 300 

ENROLLMENT FOR THE 2018-19 

SCHOOL YEAR (exclude Pre-K 

program enrollment) 

j. TOTAL STUDENT ENROLLMENT 

ON JUNE 30, 2019 (exclude Pre-K 

program enrollment) 

244 

k. GRADES SERVED IN SCHOOL YEAR 2018-19 (does not include Pre-K program 

students) 
Check all that apply 

Grades Served K, 1, 2, 3, 4, 5 

l1. DOES THE SCHOOL CONTRACT No 

WITH A CHARTER OR 

EDUCATIONAL MANAGEMENT 

ORGANIZATION? 

FACILITIES INFORMATION 

m. FACILITIES 

Will the school maintain or operate multiple sites in 2019-20? 

No, just one site. 

School Site 1 (Primary) 
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IF LOCATED IN PRIVATE SPACE IN NYC OR IN DISTRICTS OUTSIDE NYC 

m1d. Upload a current Certificate of Occupancy (COO) and the annual Fire Inspection 

Report for school site 1 if located in private space in NYC or located outside of NYC . 

Site 1 Certificate of Occupancy (COO) 

https://nysed cso reports.fluidreview.com/resp/109818903/yFPTXS6fVy/ 

Site 1 Fire Inspection Report 

https://nysed cso reports.fluidreview.com/resp/109818903/nBJtmqxAKU/ 

CHARTER REVISIONS DURING THE 2018-19 SCHOOL YEAR 

n1. Were there any revisions to Yes 

the school’s charter during the 

2018-19 school year? (Please 

include approved or pending 

material and non-material 
charter revisions). 

n2. Summary of Charter Revisions 

Category (Select Best Specific Revision
Description) (150 word limit) 

From: 

“The Charter School 
of Inquiry (CSI) will
achieve 
breakthrough
outcomes for City of
Buffalo children in 
Kindergarten through
Grade 6 by creating
an inquiry based
learning environment
with an intense focus 
on learning to read
and write well in all 
subject areas. We will
offer an exceptionally
high quality
education using 

Date Approved by
BOT (if applicable) 

Date Approved by
Authorizer (if
applicable) 
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1 
Change in mission,
vision or philosophy 

intentional reading
and language
development, aligned
curriculum, engaging
inquiry based
practices, and an
outstanding system
of supports. Children
at CSI will learn to 
think critically,
problem solve and
work collaboratively
to enable their 
participation as
citizens of their 
community and the
world.” 

12/4/18 1/14/19 

To: 

“The Charter School 
of Inquiry is an
innovative school 
where children 
achieve 
breakthrough
outcomes by
pursuing questions,
thinking creatively,
and learning together
as a culturally
empowered
community.” 

2 
Change in
schedule/calendar 

The school opens at
7:15 am and runs 
until approximately
3:30, when dismissal 
ends. Occasionally,
half days for students
may be scheduled to
accommodate 
professional
development.
The annual calendar 
for CSI will usually
exceed the number 
of calendar days
offered by Buffalo
Public Schools, but 
with more 
instructional time 
offered each day the 

5/7/19 5/10/19 
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3 

4 

5 

More revisions to add? 

ATTESTATION 

total number of 
instructional hours 
per year will always
exceed what is 
offered by Buffalo
Public Schools. 
Professional 
development for
teachers and staff is 
offered prior to the
start of each school 
year in August as
well as ongoing PD
opportunities
throughout the
school year. 

No 

o. Individual Primarily Responsible for Submitting the Annual Report. 

Name John Sheffield 

Position Head of School 

Phone/Extension 

Email 

p. Our signatures (Executive Director/School Leader/Head of School and Board 

President) below attest that all of the information contained herein is truthful and 

accurate and that this charter school is in compliance with all aspects of its charter, 
and with all pertinent Federal, State, and local laws, regulations, and rules. We 

understand that if any information in any part of this report is found to have been 

deliberately misrepresented, that will constitute grounds for the revocation of our 

charter. Check YES if you agree and then use the mouse on your PC or the stylist on 

your mobile device to sign your name). 

Yes 
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Signature, Head of Charter School 

Signature, President of the Board of Trustees 

Date 2019/07/19 

Thank you. 
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Entry 2 NYS School Report Card Link 
Last updated: 07/18/2019 

CHARTER SCHOOL OF INQUIRY 

1. CHARTER AUTHORIZER (As of 
June 30th, 2019) 

(For technical reasons, please re select 
authorizer name from the drop down 

menu). 

2. NEW YORK STATE REPORT 

CARD 

Provide a direct URL or web link 

to the most recent New York 

State School Report Card for the 

charter school (See 

https://reportcards.nysed.gov/). 

(Charter schools completing year 
one will not yet have a School 
Report Card or link to one. Please 

type "URL is not available" in the 

space provided.) 

REGENTS Authorized Charter School 

https://data.nysed.gov/reportcard.php?instid=800000083428 

1 / 1 



	 	

	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 		 	 	 	

	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	

	 	 	 	 	 	

	
	

	 	
	

	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	
	

	 	
	 	 	 	

	

	 	
	 	
	 	 	 	
	 	 	

	 	
	 	

	
	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	

	 	 	
	 	
	 	

	 	
	 	
	

	 	
	 	

	 	
	 	 	
	 	
	 	

Entry 3 Progress Toward Goals 
Created: 10/15/2019 • Last updated: 10/31/2019 

PROGRESS TOWARD CHARTER GOALS 

Board of Regents authorized and NYCDOE authorized charter schools only. Complete the tables provided. 
List each goal and measure as contained in the school’s currently approved charter, and indicate whether 
the school has met or not met the goal. Please provide information for all goals by November 1st. 

1. ACADEMIC STUDENT PERFORMANCE GOALS 

If performance data is not available by August 1st, please state this in the last column and update by 

November 1st. 

2018-19 Progress Toward Attainment of Academic Goals 

Academic Student Measure Used to 
Performance Goal Evaluate Progress

Toward Attainment of 
Goal 

Goal Met or Not Met Indicate if data is not 
available. If/when
available, Describe 
Efforts School Will 
Take If Goal Is Not 
Met 

Approaching 

All students who 
were proficient had
been at CSI for at 
least two years. 

The the third grade
cohort in 2017 2018 
increased proficiency
in ELA by 12% in
fourth grade in 2019. 

Steps being taken in
the 2019 2020 school 
year to address
deficiencies: 

1. Recognizing the 
urgency to see
favorable outcomes 
from the turnaround 
initiatives that began
during the 2018 2019
school year, the BOT
made the decision, 
based on NYS 

1 / 20 



	 	

	
	 	 	

	 	 	
	 	

	
	 	 	

	 	

	
	 	

	

	 	

	 	 	
	

	 	
	
	

	 	
	 	

	
	 	

	 	
	
	 	

	 	
	 	

	

	

	 	
	

	 	 	
	
	
	

	
	

	 	
	
	 	
	

	 	
	 	

	
	

assessment data 
received at the end 
of August, to partner
with an educational 
consultant company.
The BOT has received 
proposals from three
highly regarded
consultant companies
with proven records
of success: 
Achievement 
Network, 
SchoolWorks, and JPS 
Solutions. 

The BOT is seeking
objective on site
reviews of the 
following: academic
programs, including
instruction; 
assessment 
instruments and the 
use of data; 
leadership structure,
job descriptions, and
staffing; and data
trends evaluated 
against a research
based set of 
standards linked to 
positive student 
outcomes. 

Following a
comprehensive
quality review, the
consultant company
will be expected to
create oversight
systems that
establish clear 
expectations for
student achievement 
and to provide
ongoing instructional
support that will
enable leadership
and instructors to 
reflect on teaching
and learning
strategies. The 
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ELA Absolute 
Measure 

Academ 
ic Goal 
1 

Each year, 50% of
students enrolled for 
at least two years at
CSI will score at least 
at Level 3 on state 
assessments in 
grades 3 6 

NYS Assessments Not Met 

consultant company
will be expected to
assess the current 
state of the school 
and help the
leadership team
gather insights to
inform the planning
process. The
consultant company
will then be expected
to lead the process of
creating a custom
data informed 
improvement plan
that preserves the
key design elements
of the Charter and 
builds on initiatives 
that are already
showing promise. 

2. At the start of the 
2019 2020 school 
year, we
implemented new
research based math 
and reading
programs. This
implementation
followed extensive 
research by the
Curriculum 
Committee that 
included teachers 
and school leaders. 

3. During the
summer of 2019, 
curriculum alignment
work was conducted 
to continue efforts to 
identify gaps and
better align the
curriculum to the 
Standards. 

4. For the 2019 2020 
school year, we
created an additional 
special education and
one RTI specialist
position based on the 
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needs identified 
through benchmark
testing. 

5. Through a
partnership with
Buffalo Hearing and
Speech Services, we
added an after school 
reading intervention 
program. 

6. At the start of the 
2019 2020 school 
year, we added two
career level master 
teachers as 
independent
consultants to 
mentor 
inexperienced but
promising teachers,
to work alongside of
our two instructional 
coaches, and to focus 
on the delivery of
mathematics 
instruction. 

7. At the start of the 
2019 2020 school 
year, we adopted
new intervention 
programs that are
aligned to our new
reading and math
programs that also
meet the criteria set 
by the District CSE as
part of an approved
approach to
intervention. 

8. in the 2019 2020 
school year, we
increased support
from Erie 1 BOCES by
ten days to provide
further support to
teachers in the 
effective use of 
eDoctrina. 

4 / 20 



	 	

	
	 	
	

	 	
	

	 	
	 	 	

	 	 	
	 	 	
	 	 	

	
	 	

	 	 	
	 	

	 	
	 	 	

	
	

	 	 	
	 	
	 	

	 	
	 	
	

	 	
	 	

	 	
	 	 	
	 	
	 	

	
	 	 	

	 	 	
	 	

	
	 	 	

	 	

	
	 	

	

	 	

	 	 	
	

	 	

Approaching District
Levels at Specific
Grade Levels 

Our students fell 
within three 
percentage points of
the District in fourth 
grade and fifth grade
ELA. This shows a 
12% increase for the 
2018 2019 fourth 
grade cohort from
the year before. In
comparison for fourth
grade in 2017 2018
to fourth grade in
2018 2020, 
proficiency increased
by 7%.
Steps being taken in
the 2019 2020 school 
year to address
deficiencies: 

1. Recognizing the 
urgency to see
favorable outcomes 
from the turnaround 
initiatives that began
during the 2018 2019
school year, the BOT
made the decision, 
based on NYS 
assessment data 
received at the end 
of August, to partner
with an educational 
consultant company.
The BOT has received 
proposals from three
highly regarded
consultant companies
with proven records
of success: 
Achievement 
Network, 
SchoolWorks, and JPS 
Solutions. 

The BOT is seeking
objective on site
reviews of the 
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ELA Comparative
Measure 

Academ 
ic Goal 
2 

Each year, the
percentage of
students enrolled for 
at least two years at
CSI will score at least 
10% above BPS 
students in the same 
grades 3 through 6. 

NYS Assessment Not Met 

following: academic
programs, including
instruction; 
assessment 
instruments and the 
use of data; 
leadership structure,
job descriptions, and
staffing; and data
trends evaluated 
against a research
based set of 
standards linked to 
positive student 
outcomes. 

Following a
comprehensive
quality review, the
consultant company
will be expected to
create oversight
systems that
establish clear 
expectations for
student achievement 
and to provide
ongoing instructional
support that will
enable leadership
and instructors to 
reflect on teaching
and learning
strategies. The
consultant company
will be expected to
assess the current 
state of the school 
and help the
leadership team
gather insights to
inform the planning
process. The
consultant company
will then be expected
to lead the process of
creating a custom
data informed 
improvement plan
that preserves the
key design elements
of the Charter and 
builds on initiatives 
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that are already
showing promise. 

2. At the start of the 
2019 2020 school 
year, we
implemented new
research based math 
and reading
programs. This
implementation
followed extensive 
research by the
Curriculum 
Committee that 
included teachers 
and school leaders. 

3. During the
summer of 2019, 
curriculum alignment
work was conducted 
to continue efforts to 
identify gaps and
better align the
curriculum to the 
Standards. 

4. For the 2019 2020 
school year, we
created an additional 
special education and
one RTI specialist
position based on the
needs identified 
through benchmark
testing. 

5. Through a
partnership with
Buffalo Hearing and
Speech Services, we
added an after school 
reading intervention 
program. 

6. At the start of the 
2019 2020 school 
year, we added two
career level master 
teachers as 
independent
consultants to 
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Academ 
ic Goal 

Academ 

ELA Growth Measure 

Each year, all grade
level cohorts of 
students will reduce 
by one half the gap
between the percent
at or above Level 3 
on the previous
year's state ELA 
assessment. 

ELA Growth Measure 

Students in K through
grade 2 will
demonstrate 

NYS Assessment 

AIMSweb Plus and 

Not Met 

mentor 
inexperienced but
promising teachers,
to work alongside of
our two instructional 
coaches, and to focus 
on the delivery of
mathematics 
instruction. 

7. At the start of the 
2019 2020 school 
year, we adopted
new intervention 
programs that are
aligned to our new
reading and math
programs that also
meet the criteria set 
by the District CSE as
part of an approved
approach to
intervention. 

8. in the 2019 2020 
school year, we
increased support
from Erie 1 BOCES by
ten days to provide
further support to
teachers in the 
effective use of 
eDoctrina. 

Met at specific grade
levels. 

This goal was met by
the fourth grade
cohort in the 2018
2019 school year. 

At the end of the 
2018 2019 school 
year, 60% of
students were 
meeting grade level
standards in ELA and 
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ic Goal attainment of Fountas & Pinnell Met 12% were on track to 
4 age/grade level

proficiency
benchmarks on the 

meet grade level
standards. 72% of 
students met their 

appropriate grade
level assessments. 

gap closing goals. 

Approaching and met
at specific grade
levels. 

This goal was met at
the fourth grade
level. At all grade
levels, all students 
who demonstrated 
proficiency had been
enrolled at CSI for 
two or more years. 

The third grade
cohort in 2018 
increased the 
percentage
demonstrating
proficiency by 11% in
2019. 

Steps being taken in
the 2019 2020 school 
year to address
deficiencies: 

1. Recognizing the 
urgency to see
favorable outcomes 
from the turnaround 
initiatives that began
during the 2018 2019
school year, the BOT
made the decision, 
based on NYS 
assessment data 
received at the end 
of August, to partner
with an educational 
consultant company.
The BOT has received 
proposals from three
highly regarded
consultant companies
with proven records
of success: 
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Math Absolute 
Absolute Measure 

Academ 
ic Goal 
5 

Each year, 50% of
students enrolled for 
at least two years at
CSI will score at least 
at Level 3 on state 
assessments in 
grades 3 6 

NYS Assessments Not Met 

Achievement 
Network, 
SchoolWorks, and JPS 
Solutions. 

The BOT is seeking
objective on site
reviews of the 
following: academic
programs, including
instruction; 
assessment 
instruments and the 
use of data; 
leadership structure,
job descriptions, and
staffing; and data
trends evaluated 
against a research
based set of 
standards linked to 
positive student 
outcomes. 

Following a
comprehensive
quality review, the
consultant company
will be expected to
create oversight
systems that
establish clear 
expectations for
student achievement 
and to provide
ongoing instructional
support that will
enable leadership
and instructors to 
reflect on teaching
and learning
strategies. The
consultant company
will be expected to
assess the current 
state of the school 
and help the
leadership team
gather insights to
inform the planning
process. The
consultant company
will then be expected 
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to lead the process of
creating a custom
data informed 
improvement plan
that preserves the
key design elements
of the Charter and 
builds on initiatives 
that are already
showing promise. 

2. At the start of the 
2019 2020 school 
year, we
implemented new
research based math 
and reading
programs. This
implementation
followed extensive 
research by the
Curriculum 
Committee that 
included teachers 
and school leaders. 

3. During the
summer of 2019, 
curriculum alignment
work was conducted 
to continue efforts to 
identify gaps and
better align the
curriculum to the 
Standards. 

4. For the 2019 2020 
school year, we
created an additional 
special education and
one RTI specialist
position based on the
needs identified 
through benchmark
testing. 

5. At the start of the 
2019 2020 school 
year, we added two
career level master 
teachers as 
independent
consultants to 
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mentor 
inexperienced but
promising teachers,
to work alongside of
our two instructional 
coaches, and to focus 
on the delivery of
mathematics 
instruction. 

6. At the start of the 
2019 2020 school 
year, we adopted
new intervention 
programs that are
aligned to our new
reading and math
programs that also
meet the criteria set 
by the District CSE as
part of an approved
approach to
intervention. 

7. in the 2019 2020 
school year, we
increased support
from Erie 1 BOCES by
ten days to provide
further support to
teachers in the 
effective use of 
eDoctrina. 

Approaching at
specific grade levels 

The fourth grade
cohort was within 
three percentage
points of the Buffalo
Public School District 
for that grade level. 

Steps being taken in
the 2019 2020 school 
year to address
deficiencies: 

1. Recognizing the 
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urgency to see
favorable outcomes 
from the turnaround 
initiatives that began
during the 2018 2019
school year, the BOT
made the decision, 
based on NYS 
assessment data 
received at the end 
of August, to partner
with an educational 
consultant company.
The BOT has received 
proposals from three
highly regarded
consultant companies
with proven records
of success: 
Achievement 
Network, 
SchoolWorks, and JPS 
Solutions. 

The BOT is seeking
objective on site
reviews of the 
following: academic
programs, including
instruction; 
assessment 
instruments and the 
use of data; 
leadership structure,
job descriptions, and
staffing; and data
trends evaluated 
against a research
based set of 
standards linked to 
positive student 
outcomes. 

Following a
comprehensive
quality review, the
consultant company
will be expected to
create oversight
systems that
establish clear 
expectations for
student achievement 
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Math Comparative
Measure 

Academ 
ic Goal 
6 

Each year, the
percentage of
students enrolled for 
at least two years at
CSI will score at least 
10% above BPS 
students scoring at
Level 3 and above. 

NYS Assessments Not Met 

and to provide
ongoing instructional
support that will
enable leadership
and instructors to 
reflect on teaching
and learning
strategies. The
consultant company
will be expected to
assess the current 
state of the school 
and help the
leadership team
gather insights to
inform the planning
process. The
consultant company
will then be expected
to lead the process of
creating a custom
data informed 
improvement plan
that preserves the
key design elements
of the Charter and 
builds on initiatives 
that are already
showing promise. 

2. At the start of the 
2019 2020 school 
year, we
implemented new
research based math 
and reading
programs. This
implementation
followed extensive 
research by the
Curriculum 
Committee that 
included teachers 
and school leaders. 

3. During the
summer of 2019, 
curriculum alignment
work was conducted 
to continue efforts to 
identify gaps and
better align the
curriculum to the 
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Standards. 

4. For the 2019 2020 
school year, we
created an additional 
special education and
one RTI specialist
position based on the
needs identified 
through benchmark
testing. 

5. At the start of the 
2019 2020 school 
year, we added two
career level master 
teachers as 
independent
consultants to 
mentor 
inexperienced but
promising teachers,
to work alongside of
our two instructional 
coaches, and to focus 
on the delivery of
mathematics 
instruction. 

6. At the start of the 
2019 2020 school 
year, we adopted
new intervention 
programs that are
aligned to our new
reading and math
programs that also
meet the criteria set 
by the District CSE as
part of an approved
approach to
intervention. 

7. in the 2019 2020 
school year, we
increased support
from Erie 1 BOCES by
ten days to provide
further support to
teachers in the 
effective use of 
eDoctrina. 
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7 

Academ 
ic Goal 

Academ 
ic Goal 
8 

Academ 
ic Goal 
9 

Math Growth 
Measure 

Each year, all grade
level cohorts of 
students will reduce 
by one half the gap
between the percent
at or above Level 3 
on the previous
year's NYS math
assessment and 50% 
at or above Level 3 
on the current year's
NYS math 
assessment. 

Science Absolute 
Measure 

In grade 4, 75% of all
students enrolled for 
at least two years at
CSI will perform at or
above Level 3 on the 
NYS science 
assessment 

Science Comparative
Measure 

In grade 4, the
percent of all
students in at least 
their second year at
CSI will exceed by
15% BPS student 
performance. 

NYS Assessments Not Met 

NYS Assessment Not Met 

NYS Assessment 

Met at specific grade
levels. 

The third grade
cohort in the 2017
2018 school year met
this goal as fourth
graders in 2019. This
cohort increased 
from 7% proficiency
in 2017 2018 to 18% 
proficiency in 2019.
In a comparison of
the third grade
cohort in 2018 to the 
third grade cohort in
2019, proficiency
increased by 13%. 

Work on curriculum 
alignment for all
grade levels is being
conducted in 
partnership with
Firsthand Learning,
Erie 1 BOCES, and 
CSI instructional 
coaches. 

Data is not available 
at this time. Efforts 
being made to obtain
this data from the 
District. 

Academ 
ic Goal 

2. Do have more academic goals 

to add? 

No 

3. Do have more academic goals 

to add? 

(No response) 

16 / 20 
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4. ORGANIZATIONAL GOALS 

2018-19 Progress Toward Attainment of Organizational Goals 

Organizational Goal Measure Used to Goal Met or Not Met If Not Met, Describe 
Evaluate Progress Efforts School Will 

Take 

Org
Goal 1 

Org
Goal 2 

To increase the 
overall enrollment of 
students with 
disabilities by 5% Exceeded goal. Student enrollment from the end of the Met records. 2017 2018 school Increased by 40%. 
year to the to end of
the 2018 2019 

To increase the 
overall enrollment of 
English language Exceed goal. learners by 5% from Student enrollment Met the end of the 2017 records. Increased by 300%. 2018 school year to
the end of the 2018
2019 school year. 

Enrollment for the To increase overall 2019 2020 school Org enrollment to 85% of Student enrollment Met year is 90% ofGoal 3 maximum approved records. maximum approvedenrollment. enrollment. 

Org
Goal 4 

Org
Goal 5 

Org
Goal 6 

Org
Goal 7 

Org
Goal 8 

Org
Goal 9 

Org
Goal 10 
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Org
Goal 11 

Org
Goal 12 

Org
Goal 13 

Org
Goal 14 

Org
Goal 15 

Org
Goal 16 

Org
Goal 17 

Org
Goal 18 

Org
Goal 19 

Org
Goal 20 

5. Do have more organizational (No response) 
goals to add? 

6. FINANCIAL GOALS 
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2018-19 Progress Toward Attainment of Financial Goals 

Financial Goals Measure Used to Goal Met or Not Met If Not Met, Describe 
Evaluate Progress Efforts School Will 

Take 

To increase overall 
Financia enrollment to 85% of Student enrollment Met l Goal 1 maximum approved records. 

enrollment. 

Student enrollment 
for the 2019 2020 
school year is 90% of
maximum improved
enrollment with 
waiting lists at
grades K, 1, 2, and 3. 

Financia 
l Goal 2 

Financia 
l Goal 3 

Financia 
l Goal 4 

Financia 
l Goal 5 

7. Do have more financial goals (No response) 
to add? 

2018-19 Progress Toward Attainment of Financial Goals 

Financial Goals Measure Used to Goal Met or Not Met If Not Met, Describe 
Evaluate Progress Efforts School Will 

Take 

Financia 
l Goal 6 

Financia 
l Goal 7 

Financia 
l Goal 8 

Financia 
l Goal 9 

Financia 
l Goal 

Thank you. 

19 / 20 

10 



	 	20 / 20 



	 	

	 	 	 	
	 	

	 	 	 	

	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	

	

	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	

		 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	

	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	

Entry 4 Expenditures per Child 
Last updated: 07/30/2019 

CHARTER SCHOOL OF INQUIRYSection Heading 

Financial Information 

This information is required of ALL charter schools. Provide the following measures of fiscal 
performance of the charter school in Appendix B (Total Expenditures and Administrative Expenditures 

Per Child): 

1. Total Expenditures Per Child 

To calculate ‘Total Expenditures per Child’ take total expenditures (from the unaudited 2018-
19 Schedule of Functional Expenses) and divide by the year end FTE student enrollment. 
(Integers Only. No dollar signs or commas). 

Note: The information on the Schedule of Functional Expenses on pages 41–43 of the 

Audit Guide can help schools locate the amounts to use in the two per pupil 
calculations: Audit Guide available within the portal or on the NYSED website 

at: http://www.p12.nysed.gov/psc/regentsoversightplan/otherdocuments/auditguide2018.pdf. 

Line 1: Total Expenditures 3192723 

Line 2: Year End FTE student enrollment 237 

Line 3: Divide Line 1 by Line 2 13471 

1 / 2 



	 	

	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 		 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 		 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 		 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 		

		
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	
	

	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	

	

2. Administrative Expenditures per Child 

To calculate ‘Administrative Expenditures per Child' To calculate “Administrative Expenditures per 

Child” first add together the following: 

1. Take the relevant portion from the ‘personnel services cost’ row and the ‘management and general’ 
column (from the unaudited 2018 19 Schedule of Functional Expenses) 

2. Any contracted administrative/management fee paid to other organizations or corporations 

3. Take the total from above and divide it by the year end FTE enrollment. The relevant portion that must 
be included in this calculation is defined as follows: 

Administrative Expenditures: Administration and management of the charter school includes the 

activities and personnel of the offices of the chief school officer, the finance or business offices, school 
operations personnel, data management and reporting, human resources, technology, etc. It also 

includes those administrative and management services provided by other organizations or corporations 

on behalf of the charter school for which the charter school pays a fee or other compensation. Do not 
include the FTE of personnel whose role is to directly support the instructional program. 

Notes: 
The information on the Schedule of Functional Expenses on pages 41–43 of the Audit Guide 

can help schools locate the amounts to use in the two per pupil calculations: 
http://www.p12.nysed.gov/psc/AuditGuide.html. 
Employee benefit costs or expenditures should not be reported in the above calculations. 

Line 1: Relevant Personnel Services 
Cost (Row) 

Line 2: Management and General Cost
(Column) 

Line 3: Sum of Line 1 and Line 2 

Line 5: Divide Line 3 by the Year End
FTE student enrollment 

Thank you. 

310894 

268089 

578983 

2443 

2 / 2 



CHARTER SCHOOL OF INQUIRY 

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

JUNE 30, 2019 



      

CHARTER SCHOOL OF INQUIRY 
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Independent Auditors’ Report 

Financial Statements 

Notes to Financial Statements 

Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards 

Independent Auditors’ Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting 
and on Compliance and Other Matters Based on an Audit of Financial 
Statements Performed in Accordance with Government Auditing Standards 





Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards 

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated September 24, 2019 on our 
consideration of the School’s internal control over financial reporting and on our tests of its compliance with certain 
provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, grant agreements, and other matters.  The purpose of that report is to 
describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial reporting and compliance and the results of that 
testing, and not to provide an opinion on internal control over financial reporting or on compliance.  That report is an 
integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the School’s 
internal control over financial reporting and compliance. 

September 24, 2019 
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CHARTER SCHOOL OF INQUIRY 

Balance Sheets 

June 30, 2019 2018 

Assets 
Current assets: 

Cash 
Grants and other receivables (Note 2) 
Prepaid expenses 

$ 1,567,758 
19,921 

2,040 
1,589,719 

$ 1,080,566 
98,995 
17,430 

1,196,991 

Property and equipment, net (Note 3) 1,249,025 1,374,152 

Restricted cash 75,000 75,000 

$ 2,913,744 $ 2,646,143 

Liabilities and Net Assets 
Current liabilities: 

Current portion of long-term debt (Note 5) 
Accounts payable 
Accrued expenses 

$ 13,763 
47,389 

229,128 
290,280 

$ 12,977 
92,311 

154,012 
259,300 

Long-term debt (Note 5) 1,122,804 1,138,068 

Net assets: 
Without donor restrictions 1,500,660 1,248,775 

$ 2,913,744 $ 2,646,143 

See accompanying notes.  3 



                          

             

                      

                              

              

              

                      

                        

                      

              

                      

                  

CHARTER SCHOOL OF INQUIRY 

Statements of Activities 

For the years ended June 30, 2019 2018 

Support and revenue: 

Public school districts: 

Revenue - resident student enrollment 

Revenue - students with disabilities 

Revenue - additional state aid 

Federal and state grants 

Interest and other income 

Total support and revenue 

$ 3,158,220 

81,286 

64,943 

147,667 

7,049 

3,459,165 

$ 2,721,157 

87,385 

-

166,958 

5,455 

2,980,955 

Expenses: 

Program expenses: 

Regular education 

Special education 

Other program 

Supporting services: 

Management and general 

Total expenses 

2,128,150 

213,951 

138,367 

726,812 

3,207,280 

1,665,632 

141,323 

88,380 

569,995 

2,465,330 

Change in net assets 251,885 515,625 

Net assets - beginning 1,248,775 733,150 

Net assets - ending $ 1,500,660 $ 1,248,775 

See accompanying notes.  4 



              
                                        
                           
           

                                                             
                                                                       

                          
                          
                                 
                                
                                                          
                                                        
                                                          
                                

             
             
           

                          
                

                          
                          
                                

             
                                                             
                                                 
                                   

CHARTER SCHOOL OF INQUIRY 

Statements of Functional Expenses 

For the years ended June 30, 

2019 
Number 

of Regular Special Other Management 
Positions Education Education Program and General Total 

Administrative personnel 4.0 $ - $ - $ - $ 310,894 $ 310,894 
Instructional personnel 47.0 1,274,889 80,126 - - 1,355,015 
Non-instructional personnel 2.0 - - 67,950 - 67,950 
Total salaries 53.0 $ 1,274,889 $ 80,126 $ 67,950 $ 310,894 $ 1,733,859 

Salaries $ 1,274,889 $ 80,126 $ 67,950 $ 310,894 $ 1,733,859 
Employee benefits and payroll taxes 269,714 16,491 14,292 65,229 365,726 
Retirement 58,968 3,605 3,124 14,262 79,959 
Staff and student recruitment - - - 14,444 14,444 
Classroom supplies and materials 22,051 - - - 22,051 
Consultants 109,985 101,260 - 32,000 243,245 
Field trips 6,655 - - - 6,655 
Insurance 26,493 1,656 1,656 3,312 33,117 
Interest 97,578 6,099 6,099 12,197 121,973 
Office expense 18,461 1,154 1,154 2,308 23,077 
Other expenses 5,759 359 702 718 7,538 
Payroll processing - - - 53,698 53,698 
Professional fees - - - 92,167 92,167 
Repairs and maintenance - - - 106,227 106,227 
Staff development 39,604 - - - 39,604 
Student activities - - 5,206 - 5,206 
Student testing and assessment 10,294 - - - 10,294 
Technology 32,856 - - - 32,856 
Telephone 4,138 259 259 518 5,174 
Transportation - - 22,029 - 22,029 
Utilities 47,071 2,942 2,942 5,884 58,839 

2,024,516 213,951 125,413 713,858 3,077,738 
Depreciation 103,634 - 12,954 12,954 129,542 

Total $ 2,128,150 $ 213,951 $ 138,367 $ 726,812 $ 3,207,280 

See accompanying notes. 



              
                                              
                           
           

                                                                   
                                                                       
                                
                          
                                   
                                
                                                          
                                                        
                                                          
                                
                                                          

           
             

                          
                

                          
                                

             
                                                             
                                                   
                                   

2018 
Number 

of Regular Special Other Management 
Positions Education Education Program and General Total 

4.0 $ - $ - $ - $ 231,563 $ 231,563 
31.0 900,224 44,050 - - 944,274 

2.0 - - 40,150 - 40,150 
37.0 $ 900,224 $ 44,050 $ 40,150 $ 231,563 $ 1,215,987 

$ 900,224 $ 44,050 $ 40,150 $ 231,563 $ 1,215,987 
181,592 8,834 8,343 46,625 245,394 

41,883 2,038 1,924 10,754 56,599 
8,583 - - - 8,583 

41,297 - - - 41,297 
104,460 73,687 - 23,008 201,155 

3,414 - - - 3,414 
22,418 1,401 1,401 2,802 28,022 
97,135 6,071 6,071 12,142 121,419 
19,146 1,197 1,197 2,393 23,933 

4,948 227 227 458 5,860 
27,958 1,360 1,285 7,178 37,781 

- - - 127,147 127,147 
- - - 86,835 86,835 

40,382 - - - 40,382 
- - 5,310 - 5,310 

786 - - - 786 
26,146 - - - 26,146 

3,463 216 216 433 4,328 
- - 20,014 - 20,014 

35,871 2,242 2,242 4,484 44,839 
1,559,706 141,323 88,380 555,822 2,345,231 

105,926 - - 14,173 120,099 

$ 1,665,632 $ 141,323 $ 88,380 $ 569,995 $ 2,465,330 
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CHARTER SCHOOL OF INQUIRY 

Statements of Cash Flows 

For the years ended June 30, 2019 2018 

Operating activities: 
Cash received from public school districts 
Cash received from federal and state grants 
Cash received from other sources 
Payments to employees for services and benefits 
Payments to vendors and suppliers 
Interest paid 

$ 3,320,065 
211,125 

7,049 
(2,104,428) 

(805,753) 
(121,973) 

$ 2,914,340 
335,110 

5,455 
(1,502,364) 

(714,672) 
(121,419) 

Net operating activities 506,085 916,450 

Investing activities: 
Property and equipment expenditures (4,415) (79,420) 

Financing activities: 
Principal payments on long-term debt (14,478) (4,069) 

Net change in cash 487,192 832,961 

Cash - beginning 1,080,566 247,605 

Cash - ending $ 1,567,758 $ 1,080,566 

See accompanying notes.  6 



  

  

CHARTER SCHOOL OF INQUIRY 

Notes to Financial Statements 

1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies: 

Organization and Purpose: 

Charter School of Inquiry (the School) operates a charter 
school in the City of Buffalo, New York (the City) authorized by 
the Board of Regents of the University of the State of New 
York. Pursuant to its charter application, the School began 
operations in the fiscal year ended June 30, 2016 offering 
classes from kindergarten through second grade and plans to 
add one grade per year through 2020. The School offered 
classes from kindergarten through fifth grade in 2019 
(kindergarten through fourth in 2018). The School has been 
chartered through June 2020 and continued operations are 
contingent upon approval of its charter renewal. 

Subsequent Events: 

The School has evaluated events and transactions for 
potential recognition or disclosure through September 24, 
2019 (the date the financial statements were available to be 
issued). 

Cash: 

Cash in financial institutions potentially subjects the School to 
concentrations of credit risk since it may exceed insured limits 
at various times throughout the year. The School complies 
with a requirement to hold no less than $75,000 in an escrow 
account to pay legal and audit expenses that would be 
associated with dissolution should it occur. This is included as 
restricted cash on the balance sheets as of June 30, 2019 and 
2018. 

Receivables: 

Receivables are stated at the amounts management expects 
to collect from outstanding balances.  Balances outstanding 
after management has used reasonable collection efforts are 
written off through a charge to bad debts expense and a 
credit to accounts receivable.  An allowance for doubtful 
accounts is considered unnecessary by management because 
all significant amounts deemed uncollectible are written off 
each year. 

Property and Equipment: 

Property and equipment is stated at cost net of accumulated 
depreciation.  Depreciation is provided over estimated asset 
service lives using the straight-line method. Maintenance and 
repairs are charged to operations as incurred; significant 
improvements are capitalized. 

Enrollment Fees: 

The School is reimbursed based on the approved operating 
expense per pupil of the public-school district in which the 
pupil resides.  The amount received each year from the 
resident district is the product of the approved operating 
expense per pupil and the full-time equivalent enrollment of 
the students in the School residing in the district.  The School’s 
enrollment fees are received primarily from the Board of 
Education for the City School District. 

The City School District adjusted the enrollment fee 
calculation for students with disabilities for the year ended 
June 30, 2019.  It has not been determined if this change will 
affect special education fees the District paid to the School for 
previous years. 

In June 2019, all New York State charter schools serving 
students in the fiscal 2019 school year received additional 
state aid.  The additional aid received by each school was 
based on the number of students served and was paid directly 
from the New York State Department of Education. 
Additional aid totaling $64,943 is included as enrollment fees 
revenue on the accompanying statement of activities for the 
year ended June 30, 2019. No additional state aid was 
received for the year ended June 30, 2018. 

Grants: 

The School is the recipient of awards and reimbursements 
from federal, state and local sources.  The awards and 
reimbursements are subject to compliance and financial 
audits by the funding source.  Management believes no 
significant adjustments are necessary to recognized amounts. 

Transportation and Food Services: 

The City School District provides the School with certain 
transportation and food services at no charge.  The value of 
these services has not been recorded in these financial 
statements. 
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Income Taxes: 

The School is a 501(c)(3) organization exempt from taxation 
under Section 501(a) of the Internal Revenue Code. 

Use of Estimates: 

The preparation of financial statements in accordance with 
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States 
of America requires management to make estimates and 
assumptions that affect the amounts reported in the financial 
statements and accompanying notes.  Actual results could 
differ from those estimates. 

Functional Expense Allocation: 

The School’s costs of providing its various programs and 
activities have been summarized on a functional basis in the 
statements of functional expenses.  Accordingly, certain costs 
have been allocated among the programs and supporting 
services benefited. These costs include salaries and benefits, 
which are allocated based on estimates of time and effort, 
and depreciation, interest, and utilities which are allocated 
based on management’s estimate of program benefit. 

2. Grants and Other Receivables: 

2019 2018 
Resident student enrollment $ 4,334 $ 19,950 
Grants 15,587 79,045 

$ 19,921 $ 98,995 

3. Property and Equipment: 

2019 2018 
Building and improvements $ 1,453,317 $ 1,451,267 
Instructional and office equipment 229,045 226,680 

1,682,362 1,677,947 
Less accumulated depreciation 433,337 303,795 

$ 1,249,025 $ 1,374,152 

4. Short-Term Borrowings: 

At June 30, 2019, the School has available a $200,000 
($25,000 at June 30, 2018) bank demand line of credit for 
working capital secured by essentially all business assets with 
interest payable at prime plus 0.5%.  The line is subject to the 
usual terms and conditions applied by the bank for working 
capital financing and is annually reviewed and renewed.  
There were no borrowings on the line of credit at June 30, 
2019 and 2018. 

5. Long-Term Debt - Lease Obligations: 

In January 2015, the School entered into a series of purchase, 
lease, and sublease contracts with a developer to acquire and 
renovate its building, and currently subleases the premises 
from the developer under an absolute triple net lease.  The 
lease obligation and related assets have been capitalized for 
financial reporting purposes.  Consequently, building and 
improvements and instructional and office equipment include 
capitalized leased assets totaling $1,126,000.  Amortization of 
leased assets included in depreciation expense was $71,300 
for each of the years ended June 30, 2019 and 2018, and net 
book value of leased assets was $840,800 and $912,100 at 
June 30, 2019 and 2018. 

The capital lease term extends through June 2035 with five 
successive five-year renewal options. The agreement contains 
a buyout provision whereby the School may terminate the 
lease in consideration of payment of the remaining balance on 
the mortgage note payable and any other amounts due the 
landlord, plus a buyout provision.  The buyout provision is 
based on a fixed schedule starting at $1,126,000 with an 
annual escalation clause of 2%. 

In February 2018, the School also entered into a non-
cancelable capital lease agreement for office equipment 
totaling $32,784. Future minimum annual rentals to be paid 
for the capital leases are: 

The

2020 
2021 
2022 
2023 
2024 

reafter 

$ 134,298 
146,293 
138,600 
138,600 
138,600 

1,795,320 
2,491,711 

Amounts representing interest (10.8%) 
Net liability 
Less current portion 
Long-term portion 

1,355,144 
1,136,567 

13,763 
$ 1,122,804 

8 



6. Pension Plan: 

The School participates in a multiple employer 401(k) pension 
plan covering essentially all employees. The School 
contributes 5% of employees’ salaries to the plan, subject to 
certain limitations.  The School’s pension expense was 
$79,959 and $56,599 for the years ended June 30, 2019 and 
2018. 

7. Cash Flows Information: 

Noncash investing and financing activities excluded from the 
2018 statement of cash flows include $32,784 of equipment 
acquired through a capital lease. 

8. Financial Assets Available for Operations: 

The School obtains financial assets generally through 
enrollment fees and grants. The financial assets are acquired 
throughout the year to help meet the School’s cash needs for 
general expenditures. If necessary, the School also has access 
to a $200,000 bank demand line of credit (Note 4). 

The School’s financial assets available within one year of the 
balance sheet date to meet cash needs for general 
expenditures consist of the following at June 30, 2019 and 
2018: 

Cash 
Receivables 

2019 
$ 1,567,758 

19,921 
$ 1,587,679 

2018 
$ 1,080,566 

98,995 
$ 1,179,561 

9 





Purpose of this Report 

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and compliance and the 
results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the School’s internal control or on 
compliance.  This report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards 
in considering the School’s internal control and compliance. Accordingly, this communication is not suitable for any 
other purpose. 

September 24, 2019 

11 











  
   
   

                
                      
                               
                        
                               

                               
 

               
                      
                               

                               

           

                  
                               
                      
                               
                               
                               

                               

 
               
                               
                               

                               

 

 

 

  

Charter School of Inquiry 
Statement of Financial Position 

as of June 30 

2019 

CURRE T ASSETS 
Cash and cash equivalents $ 1,567,758 
Grants and contracts receivable 19,921 
Accounts receivables -
Prepaid Expenses 2,040 
Contributions and other receivables -
Other current assets -

TOTAL CURRE T ASSETS  1,589,719 

 O -CURRE T ASSETS 
Property, Building and Equipment, net $ 1,249,025 
 estricted Cash 75,000 
Security Deposits -
Other Non-Current Assets -

TOTAL  O -CURRE T 
ASSETS 

1,324,025 

TOTAL ASSETS 2,913,744 

CURRE T LIABILITIES 
Accounts payable and accrued expenses $ 276,517 
Accrued payroll, payroll taxes and benefts -
Current Portion of Loan Payable 13,763 
Due to  elated Parties -
 efundable Advances -
Deferred  evenue -
Other Current Liabilities -

TOTAL CURRE T 290,280
LIABILITIES 

LO G-TERM LIABILITIES 
Loan Payable; Due in More than One Year $ 1,122,804 
Deferred  ent -
Due to  elated Party -
Other Long-Term Liabilities -

TOTAL LO G-TERM 1,122,804 
LIABILITIES 

TOTAL LIABILITIES  1,413,084 



               
                               

                               
 

             

 ET ASSETS 
Unrestricted 
Temporarily restricted 
Permanently restricted 

TOTAL  ET ASSETS

$ 1,500,660 
-

-
1,500,660 

TOTAL LIABILITIES A D  ET ASSETS 2,913,744 



  
   
   

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

               
                      
                               
                      
                               

                               

               
                      
                               

                               

          

                  
                               
                      
                               
                               
                               

                               

               
                               
                               

                               

Charter School of Inqu 
Statement of Financial Po  

as of June 30 

2018 

CURRE T ASSETS 
Cash and cash equivalents $ 1,080,566 
Grants and contracts receivable 98,995 
Accounts receivables -
Prepaid Expenses 17,430 
Contributions and other receivables -
Other current assets -

TOTAL CURRE T ASSETS 1,196,991 

 O -CURRE T ASSETS 
Property, Building and Equipment, net $ 1,374,152 
 estricted Cash 75,000 
Security Deposits -
Other Non-Current Assets -

TOTAL  O -CURRE T 1,449,152 
ASSETS 

TOTAL ASSETS 2,646,143 

CURRE T LIABILITIES 
Accounts payable and accrued expenses $ 246,323 
Accrued payroll, payroll taxes and benefts -
Current Portion of Loan Payable 12,977 
Due to  elated Parties -
 efundable Advances -
Deferred  evenue -
Other Current Liabilities -

TOTAL CURRE T 259,300
LIABILITIES 

LO G-TERM LIABILITIES 
Loan Payable; Due in More than One Year $ 1,138,068 
Deferred  ent -
Due to  elated Party -
Other Long-Term Liabilities -

TOTAL LO G-TERM 1,138,068 
LIABILITIES 

TOTAL LIABILITIES 1,397,368 



 

   

               
                               

                               

          

 ET ASSETS 
Unrestricted 
Temporarily restricted 
Permanently restricted 

TOTAL  ET ASSETS 

$ 1,248,775 
-

-
1,248,775 

TOTAL LIABILITIES A D  ET ASSETS 2,646,143 



  
  

   

  

   
               

                      
                      

                    
                               
                        

                               

     

  
 

               
                    

                    

  
                    

                               

    

       

    
   
   

   
   

   
   

       

  

    

       

  
 

         

-

TOTAL OPERATI G REVE UE  3,459,165 

EXPE SES
 Program Services
  egular Education $ 2,128,150  $ 

Charter School of Inquiry 
Statement of Activities 

as of June 30 

2019 
Unrestricted Temporarily

Restricted 

OPERATI G REVE UE
 State and Local Per Pupil  evenue -  eg. Ed $ 3,158,220  $ 
 State and Local Per Pupil  evenue - SPED 81,286
 State and Local Per Pupil Facilities  evenue 64,943
 Federal Grants 147,667
 State and City Grants -
 Other Operating Income 7,049
 Food Service/Child Nutrition Program -

 Special Education 213,951
 Other Programs 138,367

 Management and general 726,812
 Fundraising -

 Interest and Other Income
 Contributions and Grants
 Fundraising Support
 Investments
 Donated Services
 Other Support and  evenue

 et Assets Released from Restrictions / Loss on 
   

 ET ASSETS - BEGI  I G OF YEAR

-

 Total Program Services  2,480,468 

TOTAL EXPE SES  3,207,280 

SURPLUS / (DEFICIT) FROM OPERATIO S  251,885 

SUPPORT A D OTHER REVE UE
 $ - $ -

-
-
-
-
-

TOTAL SUPPORT A D OTHER REVE UE  -

$ - $ -

CHA GE I   ET ASSETS  251,885 

$ 1,248,775 $ -



                                  

       

PRIOR YEAR/PERIOD ADJUSTME TS -

 ET ASSETS - E D OF YEAR  $ 1,500,660 $ -



    

             
                    
                             
                  

                              
                      

                              

             
                  

                    

                  
                              

  
  
  
  
  
  

  

  

2018 
Total Total

 $ 3,158,220 $ 2,721,157
 81,286 87,385
 64,943 -
147,667 166,958

 - -
7,049 5,455

 - -
3,459,165 2,980,955 

$ 2,128,150 $ 1,665,632
 213,951 141,323
 138,367 88,380

 2,480,468 1,895,335 
726,812 569,995

 - -
3,207,280 2,465,330 

251,885 515,625 

$ - $ -
- -
- -
- -
- -
- -

- -

$ - $ -

251,885 515,625 

$ 1,248,775 $ 733,150 



                               - -

$ 1,500,660 $ 1,248,775 



  
   

  

   
 

 

 
 
 
 

 

 
 
 
 

 
   

   
                                  

                                            
   

   
                                

                                            
   

   

    

Charter School of Inquiry 
Statement of Cash Flows 

as of Ju 

2019 

CASH FLOWS - OPERATI G ACTIVITIES 
Increase (decrease) in net assets  $ -
 evenues from School Districts  3,320,0  
Accounts  eceivable 
Due from School Districts  
Depreciation  
Grants  eceivable  
Due from NYS  
Grant revenues  211  
Prepaid Expenses  
Accounts Payable  (805,7  
Accrued Expenses  (2,104,42  
Accrued Liabilities  
Contributions and fund-raising activities  
Miscellaneous sources  
Deferred  evenue  
Interest payments  (121,9  
Other   
Other  

 ET CASH PROVIDED FROM OPERATI G ACTIVITIES  $ 506,085 

CASH FLOWS - I VESTI G ACTIVITIES  $ 
Purchase of equipment (4,415) 
Other -

 ET CASH PROVIDED FROM I VESTI G ACTIVITIES  $ (4,415) 

CASH FLOWS - FI A CI G ACTIVITIES  $ 
Principal payments on long-term debt (14,478) 
Other -

 ET CASH PROVIDED FROM FI A CI G ACTIVITIES  $ (14,478) 

 ET (DECREASE) I CREASE I  CASH A D CASH EQUIVALE TS $ 487,192 
Cash at beginning of year  $ 1,080,566 

CASH A D CASH EQUIVALE TS AT E D OF YEAR  $ 1,567,758 



 

                                          
                             
                                            
                                            
                                            
                                            
                                            
                                
                                            
                              
                           
                                            
                                            
                                            
                                            
                              
                                    

                                            

                                

                                            

                                  

                                            

                                

une 30 

2018 

$ -
2,914,340 

-
-
-
-
-

335,110 
-

(714,672) 
(1,502,364) 

-
-
-
-

(121,419) 
5,455 

-
$ 916,450 

$ 
(79,420) 

-
$ (79,420)

 $ 
(4,069) 

-
$ (4,069)

 $ 832,961 

247,605
 $ 1,080,566 



  
   
   

 
  

                                                                                            
                                                                
                                                                                 

 
                                         
                                               
                                                                          
                                                                          
                                                                          

                                                
 

                                                                          
                                                                          
                                               
                                               
                                                               
                                                                          
                                                               
                                                                          
                                                               

                                                                           
                             
                                               

     

Charter School of Inquiry 
Statement of Functional Expenses 

as of June 30 

2019 
Program Services Sup 

No. of Regular Special Other Total Fundraising 
Positions Education Education Education 

Personnel Services Costs  $  $  $  $  $ 
Administrative Staf Personnel 4.00 - - - -
Instructional Personnel 47.00 1,274,889 80,126 - 1,355,015 
Non-Instructional Personnel 2.00 - - 67,950  67,950 

Total Salaries and Staf  53.00 1,274,889 80,126 67,950 1,422,965 
Fringe Benefts & Payroll Taxes 269,714 16,491 14,292  300,497 
 etirement 58,968 3,605 3,124  65,697 
Management Company Fees - - - -
Legal Service - - - -
Accounting / Audit Services - - - -
Other Purchased / Professional / 
Consulting Services 109,985 101,260 -

211,245 

Building and Land  ent / Lease - - - -
 epairs & Maintenance - - - -
Insurance 26,493 1,656 1,656  29,805 
Utilities 47,071 2,942 2,942  52,955 
Supplies / Materials 22,051 - - 22,051 
Equipment / Furnishings - - - -
Staf Development 39,604 - - 39,604 
Marketing  /  ecruitment - - - -
Technology 32,856 - - 32,856 
Food Service - - - -
Student Services 16,949 27,235  44,184 
Ofce Expense 18,461 1,154 1,154  20,769 



                                                   

                                             

  

Depreciation 103,634 - 12,954  116,588 
OTHE  107,475 6,717 7,060  121,252 

Total Expenses  $ 2,128,150 $ 213,951 $ 138,367 $ 2,480,468 $ -



 

                            
                                         
                                           

                              
                                
                                                      
                                
                                

                              
                                                      
                              
                                  
                                  
                                           
                                                      
                                           
                                  
                                           
                                                      
                           
                                  

 
 

 

2018 
pporting Services 
Management
and General 

Total Total 

$  $  $  $ 
310,894  310,894 310,894 231,563 

- -1,355,015 944,274 
- - 67,950 40,150

 310,894 310,894 1,733,859 1,215,987 
65,229  65,229 365,726 245,394 
14,262  14,262 79,959 56,599 

- - - -
30,217  30,217 30,217 65,452 
61,950  61,950 61,950 61,695 

85,698 296,943 
85,698 201,155 

- - - -
106,227  106,227 106,227 86,835 
3,312  3,312 33,117 28,022 
5,884  5,884 58,839 44,839 

- - 22,051 41,297 
- - - -
- - 39,604 40,382 

14,444  14,444 14,444 8,583 
- - 32,856 26,146 
- - - -
- - 44,184 

2,308  2,308 23,077 23,933 



                              

                              

12,954  12,954 129,542 120,099 

13,433  13,433 134,685 198,912
 $ 726,812 $ 726,812 $ 3,207,280 $ 2,465,330 



	 	

	 	 	 	
	 	

	 	 	
	 	

	 	 	

	 	 	
	 	

	 	

	 	 	
	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	

	 	 	
	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	

	

	 	

	

	 	

	

	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 		 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	

	 	 	 	 	

	

Entry 5c Additional Financial Docs 
Last updated: 11/01/2019 

The additional items listed below should be uploaded if applicable. Please explain the reason(s) if the 

items are not included. Examples might include: a written management letter was not issued; the school 
did not expend federal funds in excess of the Single Audit Threshold of $750,000; the corrective action 

plan will be submitted by the following date (should be no later than 30 days from the submission of the 

report); etc. 

Section Heading 

1. Management Letter 

(No response) 

Explanation for not uploading No management letter issued 

the Management Letter. 

2. Form 990 

(No response) 

Explanation for not uploading Form 990 extended 

the Form 990. 

3. Federal Single Audit 

Note: A copy of the Federal Single Audit must be filed with the Federal Audit Clearinghouse. Please refer 
to OMB Uniform Guidelines for the federal filing requirements. 

(No response) 

Explanation for not uploading Federal expenditures are less than $750,000; thus no Single 

the Federal Single Audit. Audit required 

4. CSP Agreed Upon Procedure Report 

(No response) 

Explanation for not uploading N/A 

the procedure report. 

1 / 2 



	 	

	 	 	
	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	
	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	
	

5. Evidence of Required Escrow Account 

Note: For BOR schools chartered or renewed after the 2017-2018 school year, the 

escrow account per school is $100,000. 

https://nysed cso reports.fluidreview.com/resp/119095124/pN6H0Nalce/ 

Explanation for not uploading The School will ensure the escrow account is properly funded 

the Escrow evidence. in the new amount of $100,000 by December 2020 

6. Corrective Action Plan 

A Corrective Action Plan for Audit Findings and Management Letter Recommendations, which must 
include: 

a. The person responsible 

b. The date action was taken, or will be taken 

c. Description of the action taken 

d. Evidence of implementation (if available) 
(No response) 

Explanation for not uploading N/A 

the Corrective Action Plan. 

2 / 2 







	 	

	 	 	 	 	
	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	

	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	

	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	

	 	

	

	 	

Entry 5d Financial Services Contact Information 
Last updated: 11/01/2019 

Regents, NYCDOE and Buffalo BOE authorized schools should enter the financial contact information 

requested and upload the independent auditor's report and internal controls reports as one combined 

file. 

CHARTER SCHOOL OF INQUIRYSection Heading 

1. School Based Fiscal Contact Information 

School Based Fiscal Contact School Based Fiscal Contact School Based Fiscal Contact 
Name Email Phone 

Karen Burhans 

2. Audit Firm Contact Information 

School Audit Contact School Audit Contact School Audit Contact Years Working With
Name Email Phone This Audit Firm 

Thomas Burns 5 

3. If applicable, please provide contact information for the school's outsourced 

financial services firm. 

Firm Name 

Kirisits & 
Associates, 
CPAS, PLLC 

Contact 
Person 

Karen 
Burhans CPA 

Mailing
Address 

Email Phone Years with 
Firm 

6 

1 / 1 



    
          

  

     

           

     
     
                

  

            
          

   

               
            

           
            

New York State Education Department 
Request for Proposals to Establish Charter Schools Authorized by the 

Board of Regents 

2019-20 Budget & Cash Flow Template 

General Instructions and Notes for New Application Budgets and Cash Flows Templates 

1 Complete ALL SIX columns in BLUE 
2 Enter information into the GRAY cells 

3 
Cells containing RED triangles in the upper right corner in columns B through G contain guidance on 
that particular item 

4 

School district per-pupil tuition information is located on the State Aid website at 
https://stateaid.nysed.gov/charter/. Rows may be inserted in the worksheet to accomodate 
additional districts if necessary. 

5 

The Assumptions column should be completed for all revenue and expense items unless the item is 
self-explanatory. Where applicable, please reference the page number or section in the application 
narrative that indicates the assumption being made. For instance, student enrollment would 
reference the applicable page number in Section I, C of the application narrative. 



   
   

      
                        

 

 
 

 
  

   

  

 

   
     

  
    
    
    
    

  

  
    

   
  

 
   

    

      

  
    

   
   

 
     

      
    

 
  

      

  

     
 

 
   

Charter School of Inquiry 
PROJECTED BUDGET FOR 2018-2019 

July 1, 2019 to June 30, 2020 
Please Note  The student enrollment data is entered below in the Enrollment Section beginning in row 155. This will populate the data in row 10. 

Total Revenue 
Total Expenses 

Net Income 
Actual Student Enrollment 

Total Paid Student Enrollment 

REGULAR SPECIAL 
EDUCATION EDUCATION 

4,165,830 151,400 
2,820,731 289,262 
1,345,099 (137,862) 

298 14 

298 14 

OTHER 

-
244,719 

(244,719) 

MANAGEMENT & FUNDRAISING GENERAL 

- -
- 892,728 
- (892,728) 

TOTAL 

4,317,230 
4,247,440 

69,790 
-

312 

PROGRAM SERVICES 

REGULAR SPECIAL 
EDUCATION EDUCATION OTHER 

SUPPORT SERVICES 

MANAGEMENT & 
FUNDRAISING GENERAL TOTAL 

REVENUE 

REVENUES FROM STATE SOURCES 

Per Pupil Revenue CY Per Pupil Rate 

Buffalo Public Schools $13,387.55 

School District 2 (Enter Name) 
School District 3 (Enter Name) 
School District 4 (Enter Name) 
School District 5 (Enter Name) 

3,989,490 -
- -
- -
- -
- -

3,989,490 

-
-
-
-
-

- -
- -
- -
- -
- -

3,989,490 

-
-
-
-

3,989,490 

Special Education Revenue 

Grants 

Stimulus 

Other 
Other State Revenue 

TOTAL REVENUE FROM STATE SOURCES 

REVENUE FROM FEDERAL FUNDING 

IDEA Special Needs 

Title I 
Title Funding - Other 
School Food Service (Free Lunch) 
Grants 

Charter School Program (CSP) Planning & Implementation 

Other 
Other Federal Revenue 

TOTAL REVENUE FROM FEDERAL SOURCES 

LOCAL and OTHER REVENUE 

Contributions and Donations, Fundraising 

Erate Reimbursement 
Interest Income, Earnings on Investments, 
NYC-DYCD (Department of Youth and Community Developmt.) 
Food Service (Income from meals) 
Text Book 

Other Local Revenue 

TOTAL REVENUE FROM LOCAL and OTHER SOURCES 

- 151,400 

- -
- -
- -

3,989,490 151,400 

- -
147,808 -

28,332 -
- -

- -
- -
- -

176,140 

- -
- -

200 -
- -
- -
- -
- -

200 

-

-
-
-

-
-
-
-

-
-
-

-
-
-
-
-
-
-

- -

- -
- -
- -

- -
- -
- -
- -

- -
- -
- -

- -
- -
- -
- -
- -
- -
- -

151,400 

-
-
-

4,140,890 

-
147,808 

28,332 

-

-
-
-

176,140 

-
-

200 

-
-
-
-

200 

TOTAL REVENUE 4,165,830 151,400 4,317,230 

EXPENSES 

ADMINISTRATIVE STAFF PERSONNEL COSTS No. of Positions 

Executive Management 1.00 - - - - 127,500 127,500 

Instructional Management - - - - - - -
Deans, Directors & Coordinators 2.00 - - - - 94,090 94,090 



    
   

 
  

  
  
  
 

 
 

  

 

  

 

   

   
 
   

  
    

   

 
   

  
 

    
 
  

    
     

  

 

   
   

      
                        

 

 
 

 
  

   

  

 

Charter School of Inquiry 
PROJECTED BUDGET FOR 2018-2019 

July 1, 2019 to June 30, 2020 
Please Note  The student enrollment data is entered below in the Enrollment Section beginning in row 155. This will populate the data in row 10. 

REGULAR SPECIAL MANAGEMENT & OTHER FUNDRAISINGEDUCATION EDUCATION GENERAL 

Total Revenue 4,165,830 151,400 - - -
Total Expenses 2,820,731 289,262 244,719 - 892,728 

Net Income 1,345,099 (137,862) (244,719) - (892,728) 
Actual Student Enrollment 298 14 

Total Paid Student Enrollment 298 14 

TOTAL 

4,317,230 
4,247,440 

69,790 
-

312 

PROGRAM SERVICES SUPPORT SERVICES 

REGULAR SPECIAL 
EDUCATION EDUCATION OTHER 

MANAGEMENT & 
FUNDRAISING GENERAL TOTAL 

CFO / Director of Finance - - - - - -
Operation / Business Manager 1.00 - - - - 67,630 

Administrative Staff 1.00 - - - - 35,000 

TOTAL ADMINISTRATIVE STAFF 5 324,220 

INSTRUCTIONAL PERSONNEL COSTS 

Teachers - Regular 15.00 553,200 - - - -
Teachers - SPED 3.50 - 145,230 - - -
Substitute Teachers 3.00 67,590 - - - -
Teaching Assistants - - - - - -
Specialty Teachers 9.70 452,990 - - - -
Aides 15.00 354,210 - - - -
Therapists & Counselors - - - - - -
Other - 79,525 - - - -

TOTAL INSTRUCTIONAL 46 1,507,515 145,230 

NON-INSTRUCTIONAL PERSONNEL COSTS 

Nurse 0.50 - - 30,000 - -
Librarian 0.60 - - 25,000 - -
Custodian 1.00 - - 45,000 - -
Security - - - - - -
Other 1.00 - - - - 46,590 

TOTAL NON-INSTRUCTIONAL 3 100,000 46,590 

SUBTOTAL PERSONNEL SERVICE COSTS 54 1,507,515 145,230 100,000 370,810 

PAYROLL TAXES AND BENEFITS 

Payroll Taxes 150,783 14,526 10,002 - 37,089 

Fringe / Employee Benefits 236,142 22,749 15,664 - 58,086 

Retirement / Pension 70,138 6,757 4,653 - 17,253 

TOTAL PAYROLL TAXES AND BENEFITS 457,063 44,032 30,319 112,428 

TOTAL PERSONNEL SERVICE COSTS 1,964,578 189,262 130,319 483,238 

CONTRACTED SERVICES 

Accounting / Audit - - - - 81,150 

Legal - - - - 35,000 

Management Company Fee - - - - -
Nurse Services - - - - -
Food Service / School Lunch - - - - -
Payroll Services - - - - 70,200 

Special Ed Services - 100,000 - - -
Titlement Services (i e. Title I) - - - - -
Other Purchased / Professional / Consulting 46,500 - 114,400 - -

TOTAL CONTRACTED SERVICES 46,500 100,000 114,400 186,350 

SCHOOL OPERATIONS 

-
67,630 

35,000 

324,220 

553,200 

145,230 

67,590 

-
452,990 

354,210 

-
79,525 

1,652,745 

30,000 

25,000 

45,000 

-
46,590 

146,590 

2,123,555 

212,400 

332,641 

98,801 

643,842 

2,767,397 

81,150 

35,000 

-
-
-

70,200 

100,000 

-
160,900 

447,250 



 
     

    
  

   
  
 

   
 

 
   

 
 
 

   
   

 

  

   

     
   

  

    

  
     

 

 

        

  
    
    
    
    

   
   

      
                        

 

 
 

 
  

   

  

 

Charter School of Inquiry 

Board Expenses 2,600 - - - - 2,600 

Classroom / Teaching Supplies & Materials - - - - - -
Special Ed Supplies & Materials - - - - - -
Textbooks / Workbooks - - - - - -
Supplies & Materials other 224,740 - - - - 224,740 

Equipment / Furniture - - - - - -
Telephone 18,000 - - - - 18,000 

Technology 90,910 - - - - 90,910 

Student Testing & Assessment 14,900 - - - - 14,900 

Field Trips 22,350 - - - - 22,350 

Transportation (student) 25,000 - - - - 25,000 

Student Services - other 10,380 - - - - 10,380 

Office Expense 46,380 - - - - 46,380 

Staff Development 84,509 - - - - 84,509 

Staff Recruitment - - - - - -
Student Recruitment / Marketing 21,000 - - - - 21,000 

School Meals / Lunch - - - - - -
Travel (Staff) - - - - - -
Fundraising - - - - - -
Other 3,349 - - - - 3,349 

TOTAL SCHOOL OPERATIONS 564,118 564,118 

FACILITY OPERATION & MAINTENANCE 

Insurance - - - - 47,770 47,770 

Janitorial - - - - 20,600 20,600 

Building and Land Rent / Lease 120,535 - - - - 120,535 

Repairs & Maintenance - - - - 102,270 102,270 

Equipment / Furniture - - - - - -
Security - - - - - -
Utilities - - - - 52,500 52,500 

TOTAL FACILITY OPERATION & MAINTENANCE 120,535 223,140 343,675 

DEPRECIATION & AMORTIZATION 125,000 - - - - 125,000 

DISSOLUTION ESCROW & RESERVES / CONTIGENCY - - - - - -

TOTAL EXPENSES 2,820,731 289,262 244,719 892,728 4,247,440 

NET INCOME 1,345,099 (137,862) (244,719) - (892,728) 69,790 

ENROLLMENT - *School Districts Are Linked To Above Entries* 
REGULAR 

EDUCATION 
SPECIAL 

EDUCATION 
TOTAL 

ENROLLED 

Buffalo Public Schools 298 14 312 

School District 2 (Enter Name) -
School District 3 (Enter Name) -
School District 4 (Enter Name) -
School District 5 (Enter Name) -

PROJECTED BUDGET FOR 2018-2019 

July 1, 2019 to June 30, 2020 
Please Note  The student enrollment data is entered below in the Enrollment Section beginning in row 155. This will populate the data in row 10. 

REGULAR 
EDUCATION 

SPECIAL 
EDUCATION 

OTHER FUNDRAISING 
MANAGEMENT & 

GENERAL 
TOTAL 

Total Revenue 4,165,830 151,400 - - - 4,317,230 
Total Expenses 2,820,731 289,262 244,719 - 892,728 4,247,440 

Net Income 1,345,099 (137,862) (244,719) - (892,728) 69,790 
Actual Student Enrollment 298 14 -

Total Paid Student Enrollment 298 14 312 

PROGRAM SERVICES SUPPORT SERVICES 

REGULAR 
EDUCATION 

SPECIAL 
EDUCATION OTHER FUNDRAISING 

MANAGEMENT & 
GENERAL TOTAL 



 

  

  

   
   

      
                        

 

 
 

 
  

   

  

 

Charter School of Inquiry 

TOTAL ENROLLMENT 298 14 312 

REVENUE PER PUPIL 13,979 10,814 -

EXPENSES PER PUPIL 9,466 20,662 784 

PROJECTED BUDGET FOR 2018-2019 

July 1, 2019 to June 30, 2020 
Please Note  The student enrollment data is entered below in the Enrollment Section beginning in row 155. This will populate the data in row 10. 

REGULAR 
EDUCATION 

SPECIAL 
EDUCATION 

OTHER FUNDRAISING 
MANAGEMENT & 

GENERAL 
TOTAL 

Total Revenue 4,165,830 151,400 - - - 4,317,230 
Total Expenses 2,820,731 289,262 244,719 - 892,728 4,247,440 

Net Income 1,345,099 (137,862) (244,719) - (892,728) 69,790 
Actual Student Enrollment 298 14 -

Total Paid Student Enrollment 298 14 312 

PROGRAM SERVICES SUPPORT SERVICES 

REGULAR 
EDUCATION 

SPECIAL 
EDUCATION OTHER FUNDRAISING 

MANAGEMENT & 
GENERAL TOTAL 



 

        

  

   

         

   

      

Assumptions 

DESCRIPTION OF ASSUMPTIONS - Please note assumptions when applicable 

298 regular students 

14 special ed students 

List exact titles and staff FTE"s ( Full time eqiuilivalent) 

1 Head of School 

Admin Services Coordinator and Dean of Students 



   
         

          

   

  
        
  

 

        

Assumptions 

DESCRIPTION OF ASSUMPTIONS - Please note assumptions when applicable 

Assumes 15 regular teachers 

Assumes 2 full time and 3 part time (.5 each) 

Assumes 8 full time and one part time at .7 FTE 

Includes Stipends of $51,400 

10% of salaries 

44 family & single (10 health buyouts for opt-outs) 
5% of salaries 



        

       

     

   

 

        

Assumptions 

DESCRIPTION OF ASSUMPTIONS - Please note assumptions when applicable 

includes one time purchase of $119,000 for updated curriculum 

Includes one time misc tech upgrades of $20,000 

Inlcudes $24,000 in first hand learning 

12 months of leasepayments 



 

        

Assumptions 

DESCRIPTION OF ASSUMPTIONS - Please note assumptions when applicable 





































































	 	

	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 		
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	
	

	 	
	

	

	 	

	

	

Entry 8 BOT Table 
Created: 07/18/2019 • Last updated: 08/22/2019 

1. SUNY AUTHORIZED charter schools are required to provide information for VOTING Trustees only. 
2. REGENTS, NYCDOE, and BUFFALO BOE AUTHORIZED charter schools are required to provide 

information for all VOTING and NON VOTING trustees. 

1. Current Board Member Information (Enter info for each BOT member) 

1 

2 

3 

Trustee 
Name 
and 
Email 
Address 

Helene 
Kramer 

Peter 
Dow 

R. Bruce 
Haydon

Stephani
e Adams 

Deborah 
Porter 

Position 
on the 
Board 

Chair 

Vice 
Chair 

Treasurer 

Secretary 

Trustee/M
ember 

Committ 
ee 
Affiliation 
s 

Executive 
Audit/Fin 
ance 
Academic 

Executive 
Academic 

Executive 
Audit/Fin 
ance 

Executive 
Academic 
HR/Perso
nnel 

Departed
BOT in 
June 
2019 

HR/Perso
nnel 

Voting
Member 
Per By
Laws 
(Y/N) 

Yes 

Yes 

Yes 

Yes 

Yes 

Number 
of Terms 
Served 

2 

2 

1 

1 

2 

Start 
Date of 
Current 
Term 
(MM/DD/Y
YYY) 

07/06/20
16 

07/11/20
17 

05/07/20
19 

05/01/20
18 

07/07/20
16 

End Date 
of 
Current 
Term 
(MM/DD/Y
YYY) 

08/06/20
19 

07/07/20
20 

08/06/20
19 

08/06/20
19 

Board 
Meetings
Attended 
During
2018 19 

7 

12 

5 or less 

8 

08/06/20 819 

1 / 4 

4 

5 



	 	

	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	

	
6 

7 

8 

9 

Betty
Evans 
No email 
address 

Melissa 
Stadler 

Morgan
Williams
Bryant

Michelle 
Lane 

Trustee/M
ember 

Trustee/M
ember 

Trustee/M
ember 

Parent 
Rep 

1a. Are there more than 9 

members of the Board of 
Trustees? 

Academic 

HR/Perso
nnel 

Audit/Fin 
ance 

HR/Perso
nnel 

Yes 

Yes 

Yes 

2 

2 

07/06/20
16 

07/07/20
16 

08/06/20
19 

08/06/20
19 

6 

12 

Yes 2 
07/03/20
18 

07/06/20
21 

11 

Yes 1 
10/2/201
8 

08/06/20
19 

7 

2 / 4 



	 	

	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	

	

	 	 	 	

	
	

	 	
	

	

	

	 	

1b. Current Board Member Information 

Trustee 
Name 
and 
Email 
Address 

Position 
on the 
Board 

Committ 
ee 
Affiliation 
s 

Voting
Member 
Per By
Laws 
(Y/N) 

Number 
of Terms 
Served 

Start 
Date of 
Current 
Term 
(MM/DD/Y
YYY) 

End Date 
of 
Current 
Term 
(MM/DD/Y
YYY) 

Board 
Meetings
Attended 
During
2018 19 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

Jody
Sirianni 

Patrick 
Miner 

Trustee/M
ember 

Treasurer 

1c. Are there more than 15 

members of the Board of 
Trustees? 

Executive 
, 
HR/Perso
nnel 

Audit/Fin 
ance 

Departed
BOT in 
Septemb
er 2018 

Yes 

Yes 

(No response) 

1 

2 

10/02/20
18 

07/11/20
17 

08/06/20 619 

07/07/20 5 or less 20 

3 / 4 



	 	

	 	 	 	
	 	

	 	 	 	
	 	

	 	 	 	

	
	

	 	
	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 		
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	

	 	 	 	
	

	 	 	 	 	
	 	

	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	

	

1d. Current Board Member Information 

Trustee 
Name 
and 
Email 
Address 

Position 
on the 
Board 

Committ 
ee 
Affiliation 
s 

Voting
Member 
Per By
Laws 
(Y/N) 

Number 
of Terms 
Served 

Start 
Date of 
Current 
Term 
(MM/DD/Y
YYY) 

End Date 
of 
Current 
Term 
(MM/DD/Y
YYY) 

Board 
Meetings
Attended 
During
2018 19 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

2. INFORMATION ABOUT MEMBERS OF THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES 

1. SUNY-AUTHORIZED charter schools provide response relative to VOTING Trustees only. 
2. REGENTS, NYCDOE, and BUFFALO BOE-AUTHORIZED charter schools provide a response 

relative to all trustees. 

a. Total Number of BOT Members on 
June 30, 2019 

b.Total Number of Members Added 
During 2018 19 

c. Total Number of Members who 
Departed during 2018 19 

d.Total Number of members in 2018 19, 
as set by in Bylaws, Resolution or
Minutes 

3. Number of Board meetings 

held during 2018-19 

4. Number of Board meetings 

scheduled for 2019-20 

Thank you. 

9 

3 

2 

9 

12 

12 

4 / 4 



	 	

	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	
	 	 	

	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	
	 	 	

	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	

	 	 	

Entry 9 - Board Meeting Minutes 
Created: 07/18/2019 • Last updated: 07/22/2019 

Instructions for submitting minutes of the BOT monthly meetings 

Regents, NYCDOE, and Buffalo BOE authorized schools must either provide a link to a complete set of 
minutes that are posted on the charter school website, or upload a complete set of board meeting 

minutes from July 2018 June 2019, which should match the number of meetings held during the 2018 19 

school year. 

CHARTER SCHOOL OF INQUIRY 

Are all monthly BOT meeting 

minutes posted, which should 

match the number of meetings 

held during 2018-19 school year, 
on the charter school's website? 

Yes 

A. Provide if posted on the 

charter school's website a URL 

http://csicharter.org/board meeting minutes/ 

link to the Monthly Board 

Meeting Minutes, which should 

match the number of meetings 

held during the 2018-19 school 
year. 

1 / 1 



	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	

Entry 10 Enrollment and Retention of Special 
Populations 
Created: 07/18/2019 • Last updated: 08/20/2019 

Instructions for Reporting Enrollment and Retention Strategies 

Describe the efforts the charter school has made in 2018 19 toward meeting targets to attract and retain 

enrollment of students with disabilities, English language learners/Multilingual learners, and students who 

are economically disadvantaged. In addition, describe the school’s plans for meeting or making progress 

toward meeting its enrollment and retention targets in 2019 20. 

CHARTER SCHOOL OF INQUIRYSection Heading 

Recruitment/Attraction Efforts Toward Meeting Targets 

Describe Recruitment Efforts in 2018 19 Describe Recruitment Plans in 2019 20 

Implemented marketing plan developed by
Carbon Consulting Company that included
multiple ways of learning about CSI, tailoring
our message to targeted populations, and
focusing on primary considerations identified
by parents of target populations. 

The Board of Trustees monitors all 
recruitment efforts monthly and has
committed substantial resources to enhance 
the School's recruitment initiatives. 

The efforts made to attract and recruit 
economically disadvantaged students have
been meeting with a great deal of success,
as CSI exceeds the district percentage. 

In the 2019 2020 school year, CSI intends to
use all of the recruitment strategies used in
the 2018 2019 school. 

The school does, however, plan on
contracting with a public relations company
to better help us to get our message out to
the wider community, and intends to create
a part time, per diem community outreach
position to ensure that recruitment efforts
are conducted consistently throughout the
year and to increase the School's visibility
throughout the community. 

The following specific efforts will be
implemented, improved and/or maintained: 

1. Continue to use the marketing plan and
recruitment materials developed by Carbon 

1 / 9 



	 	

	 	 	
	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	

	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	

	

	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	

	

	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	

	 	

	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	

	

	 	 	 	 	
	

	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	
	

	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	

	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	

Econom 
ically
Disadva 
ntaged 

Redesigned recruitment materials to
emphasize primary consideration factors. 

Offered stipends to staff members to
participate in recruitment events to increase
the number of representatives at these 
events. 

Created a recruitment committee as part of
the Parent Association. 

Met with directors of pre schools in targeted
areas of the city. 

Provided recruitment materials to families 
with children in pre schools in targeted areas
of the city. 

Distributed recruitment materials at libraries 
in targeted areas of the city. 

Set up recruitment tables at community
events in targeted neighborhoods. 

Advertised in community newspapers and
radio stations that reach targeted
populations. 

Designed and implemented a social media
recruitment plan to target specific
demographics. 

Literature drops in public housing
developments near the school. 

Recruited at public health fairs and
community events in high poverty areas of
the city. 

Consulting Company, which includes an
emphasis on the multiple ways parents can
learn about CSI, tailored messaging to each
of the key at risk demographics, and other
information to help the School identify
primary considerations of parents in each
target population; 

2. Create a part time, per diem community
outreach position; 

3. Offer stipends to staff members to
encourage participation at a wide variety of
community and cultural events with
recruitment tables, as well as continue to 
attend routine events at preschools and day 
care centers; 

4. Continue to cultivate a subcommittee of 
the Parent Association focused on 
recruitment; 

5. Provide further training to teachers on
trauma sensitive classrooms and issues of 
poverty; 

6. Distribute recruitment materials in 
pediatrician offices in targeted areas of the
city; 

7. Distribute materials at libraries and 
community centers, especially in targeted
areas of the city; 

8. Conduct open houses for childcare
providers to learn about CSI; 

9. Advertise in community outlets to reach
targeted populations, such as The Challenger
and WNY Family Magazine (which are placed
in pediatricians offices) 

10. Advertise on social media and with WBLK 
(a local radio station); 

11. The HOS will visit each Head Start 
program in targeted areas; 

12. The School will attended recruitment fairs 
with a Head Start programs that serve
targeted populations; 

13. The school will participate in community 

2 / 9 



	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	
	

	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	
	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	

events and festivals, such as Juneteenth; 

14. Refine and continually improve materials
to emphasize primary consideration factors
of economically disadvantaged families; 

15. The BOT will oversee all recruitment 
efforts. 

Implemented marketing plan developed by
Carbon Consulting Company that included
multiple ways of learning about CSI, tailoring
our message to target population, focus on
primary consideration factors identified by
people who work with immigrant and refugee
families. 

CSI continues to fall below the District with 
this subgroup. CSI has, however, seen gains
from our recruitment efforts. The number of 
ENL students increased from 0 in 2017 2018 
to 4 in 2018 2019, with an estimated 
increase to 8 students in the 2019 2020 
school year. 

CSI intends to use all of the recruitment 
strategies used in the 2018 2019 school year
in the 2019 2020 school year; however, the
school will increase direct outreach to the 
growing Bengali community. 

The Bengali community is growing on the
East side, which is rare because many
immigrant and refugee families prefer to
settle on the West Side of Buffalo. CSI has 
made efforts to ensure these families 
understand that this school is a favorable 
option. This strategy began during the 2018
19 school year with the realization that the
community is growing and will continue into
the next school year(s). 

In the 2019 2020 school year, direct
outreach will include meeting with members
of the Bengali community to explain how CSI
is a good option for their children, work
closely with Bengali translators, and ensure
that all correspondence with these families is
translated into their native language. 

The following specific efforts will be
implemented, improved and/or maintained: 

1. Continue to use the marketing plan and
recruitment materials developed by Carbon
Consulting Company, which includes an
emphasis on the multiple ways parents can
learn about CSI, tailored messaging to each
of the key at risk demographics, and other
information to help the School identify 

3 / 9 



	 	

	 	 	 	
	 	

	 	 	
	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	

	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	
	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	

	 	 	
	 	 	 	

	 	

	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	
	

	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	
	

	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	

	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	

	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	

	 	

	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	
	

	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	

Distributed recruitment materials in English
and Spanish. 

Redesigned recruitment materials to
emphasize primary consideration factors of
immigrant and refugee families. 

Hired an experienced ENL teacher to work
with the Head of School to develop a
comprehensive program to meet the needs
of English language learners and their
families. 

English
Langua The Head of School served as a member of 
ge an advisory panel for the International
Learner Institute in order to be a part of discussions
s/Multili on educational alternatives for immigrant
ngual and refugee families. 
Learner 
s Worked with Journey's End to translate

materials into the native language of the
School's ENL students. 

CSI was the only school in Buffalo to recruit
at World Refugee Day and offer inquiry
learning activities for children. 

Ran advertisements in community
newspapers that reach immigrant and
refugee families. 

Developed and implemented a social media
plan to reach families in targeted
neighborhoods and specific demographics. 

Met with directors of pre schools in that
serve high percentages of English language
learners to inform them of supports offered
by CSI for English language learners. 

primary considerations of parents in each
target population; 

2. Create a part time, per diem community
outreach position and emphasize outreach in
the Bengali community, which is growing on
the East Side; 

3. Offer stipends to staff members to
encourage participation at a wide variety of
community and cultural events with
recruitment tables, as well as continue to 
attend routine events at preschools and day
care centers in areas of the city with high
percentages of immigrant and refugee
families; 

4. Continue to cultivate a subcommittee of 
the Parent Association focused on 
recruitment; 

5. Distribute recruitment materials in 
pediatrician offices, particularly in areas of
the city with a high percentage of immigrant
and refugee families; 

6. Distribute materials at libraries and 
community centers, especially in targeted
areas of the city; 

7. Conduct open houses for childcare
providers that serve high percentages of
English language learners; 

8. Continue to advertise in community
outlets to reach targeted populations, such
as Panorama Hispano News; 

9. Advertise on social media targeting areas
of the city with high percentages of
immigrant and refugee families; 

10. The HOS will visit each Head Start 
program in targeted areas, particularly those
serving immigrant and refugee families; 
areas. 

11. Participate in community events and
festivals, such as World Refugee Day  in
fact, during the 2019 World Refugee Day CSI
was the only school in attendance, charter or
otherwise; 

4 / 9 



	 	

	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	
	 	

	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	

	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	
Implemented marking plan developed by
Carbon Consulting. 

12. Refine and continually improve materials
to emphasize primary consideration factors
of immigrant and refugee families; 

13. Contract with Journey’s End Refugee
Services for translation beyond Spanish; 

14. Work with the Regional Bilingual
Education Resource Network to create an 
education environment which engages all
students in meaningful teaching and
learning, respects diversity and enables ELL
student to achieve at high levels; 

15. Provide PD on teaching language arts
strategies to English language learners; 

16. The BOT will oversee all recruitment 
efforts. 

Recruitment efforts to attract families of 
children with disabilities have likely been
successful; however, CSI has faced many
challenges working with the District CSE. CSI
likely has many more students who qualify
for a special education classification and
subsequent services, and CSI is well
prepared and committed to offer these
services; however, referrals are rejected by
the District CSE team without progressing for
further testing or a formal meeting. CSI has
attempted to resolve these issues and work
closely with District officials to ensure that
we are meeting all requirements. Next steps
in the 2019 2020 school year will include
seeking guidance from our CSO liaison and
legal consultation. 

The following specific efforts will be
implemented, improved and/or maintained: 

1. Continue to use the marketing plan and
recruitment materials developed by Carbon
Consulting Company, which includes an
emphasis on the multiple ways parents can
learn about CSI, tailored messaging to each
of the key at risk demographics, and other
information to help the School identify 

5 / 9 



	 	

	

	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	

	

	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	

	 	

	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	
	

	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	
	

	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	

	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	

	

	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

Redesigned recruitment materials to
highlight special education services offered. 

Communicated special education services
offered by CSI to special education
advocates. 

Student Reached out to pre schools that offers with services for students with disabilities. Disabilit 
ies Attempted, without success, to work with the

Assistant Superintendent for Special
Education with the Buffalo Public School 
District and the CSE assigned to our school
to move current students through the
referral process. 

Developed and implemented a city wide
social media plan to inform families of the
services offered by CSI for students with
disabilities. 

primary considerations of parents in each
target population; 

2. Create a part time, per diem community
outreach position and emphasize outreach to
families of children with disabilities; 

3. Offer stipends to staff members to
encourage participation at a wide variety of
community and cultural events with
recruitment tables, as well as continue to 
attend routine events at preschools and day
care centers to inform parents of services
offered by CSI; 

4. Continue to cultivate a subcommittee of 
the Parent Association focused on 
recruitment; 

5. Distribute recruitment materials in 
pediatrician offices; 

6. Conduct open houses for childcare
providers to learn about CSI and services
offered; 

7. The HOS will visit each Head Start 
program that serves students with
disabilities; 

8. Refine and continually improve materials
to emphasize primary consideration factors
of families of students with disabilities; 

9. Communicate special education services
provided by CSI to the local CSE members
and special education advocates; 

10. Hire additional special education staff as
needed; 

11. Ensure proper documentation of
intervention techniques, per directives from
the CSE, to expedite the evaluation of
students who need IEPs; 

• The BOT will oversee all recruitment 
efforts. 

Retention Efforts Toward Meeting Targets 

Describe Retention Efforts in 2018 19 Describe Retention Plans in 2019 20 
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Econom 
ically
Disadva 
ntaged 

Provided greater support in literacy and
math by adding additional RTI specialists. 

Implemented the LLI program for literacy
intervention. 

Free lunch and breakfast programs for all
students. 

Free before and after care programs
available to all students. 

Free transportation from all parts of the city. 

Expanded volunteer mentor program to
provide social and academic support to
students at risk. 

Increased extra curricular activities for 
students that included a track team, Young
Gentlemen's Club, Etiquette Club, Chess
Club, School Newspaper Club, Poetry Club,
Art Club, and Drill Team. 

Brought in speakers from the wider
community to educate students on social
and civic issues. 

Junior Achievement programs offered to
students on Campus. 

Programs offered to all students by the Erie
County Council for the Prevention of Alcohol
and Substance abuse. 

Officers from the Buffalo Police Department
volunteered to work with our Young
Gentlemen's Club. 

Erie County Coalition for Restorative Justice
provided multiple trainings for teachers on
crisis intervention and trauma sensitive 
classrooms. 

Increased field trips for all grade levels. 

Provided training to teachers on trauma
sensitive classrooms and issues of poverty. 

CSI documents the living arrangements of
students and has a plan to provide homeless
children and unaccompanied youth enrolled
at the school with the same education as 

Overall, efforts to retain all students were 
successful in the 2018 2019 school year,
with a 90% retention rate. Those families 
who did choose to leave CSI left primarily
because they moved out of the area or chose
to enroll in schools that serve grades 5 12 to
secure a seat for their children in middle and 
high school. 

CSI intends to continue all retention efforts 
from the 2018 2019 school year with the
additions noted below. 

The School has increased the budget for field
trips and extra curricular activities; the
school contracted with Buffalo Hearing and
Speech to add a part time mental health
counselor; and teachers will continue to be 
trained in trauma sensitive classrooms, 
issues of poverty, and Restorative Justice
practices. 

Initiatives taken in the 2018 2019 school 
year to close the achievement gap have
produced measurable outcomes. At the start
of the 2018 2019 school year, 31% of
students at CSI were reading at grade level;
by the end of the year, 60% were reading at
grade level and another 12% were on track
to meet grade level reading standards. 

To further close this gap, the School
researched math and reading programs and
intervention programs that have a high
success rate in closing the gap between
economically disadvantaged and
economically advantaged students. The
Board of Trustees invested over $100,000 in 
new curricular resources for the 2019 2020 
school year. 

7 / 9 



	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	
	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	
	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	

	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	

	

	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	

	

	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	
	

	 	 	 	
	

	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	

their peers. CSI provides equal access as per
the McKinney Vento Assistance Act. 

English
Langua 
ge
Learner 
s/Multili
ngual
Learner 
s 

Student 
s with 

Employed an experienced ENL teacher to
adequately address the learning needs of
English language learners, and to work with
the Head of School and teachers to develop
a supportive program for English language
learners that includes both a Language Arts
instructional component and content area
instructional support. 

Utilized ENL teacher as a resource to offer 
strategies to teach Language Arts to English
language learners. 

Educated families and teachers on the role of 
the ESL teacher. 

Worked with the Regional Bilingual Education
Resource Network to create an educational 
environment that engages everyone in
meaningful teaching and learning. 

Contracted with Buffalo Hearing and Speech
to provide all Related Services. 

Ensured that special education services were
provided precisely as indicated on each
child's IEP. 

Provided training to ensure that classroom
teachers are knowledgeable about the needs
of students with disabilities. 

Quarterly IEP reports are sent to parents. 

CSI ensured that annual review meetings
were held by the District CSE. 

Used diagnostic measures to monitor
academic progress of students with special
education needs. 

Added two additional special education
teachers. 

As noted above, the percentage of English
language learners at CSI increased from 0
students in 2017 2018 to 4 students in 2019
2020. 

CSI plans on expanding the supportive
program for English language learners that
began in the 2018 2019 school year. 

In the 2019 2020 school year, CSI will
expand the role of its ENL teacher and utilize
his expertise to offer strategies to all other
teachers on teaching language arts to
children with limited English proficiency. 

The School purchased a companion program
to our new reading program that is designed
to better help teachers meet the learning
needs of English language learners. 

Translation services will be more readily
available to teachers so they will not need to
go through main office personnel when they
need correspondence translated into a native
language or communicate verbally with 
parents. 

CSI is committed to offering an exemplary
program for students with disabilities. The
School intends to expand on the retention
efforts made in the 2018 2019 school year. 
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Disabilit A new documentation system was
ies implemented to ensure that there was

appropriate follow up after an initial referral
to the school's SST. 

Ensured that teachers were properly
documenting interventions prior to referral to
the CSE, as per the requirements and
directives of the District. 

Ensured that referrals were made to the CSE 
when data indicated that a child was not 
making adequate progress even with a wide
range of interventions. 

*Regrettably, a great number of referrals to
the District CSE are kicked back without the 
student receiving special education testing.
This continues after multiple attempts to
work with the District to ensure that our RTI 
and documentation meet the District's 
requirements. 

The Board of Trustees has approved the
addition of up to two additional special
education teachers, and CSI hopes to expand
services to include resource rooms. 
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Entry 11 Classroom Teacher and Administrator 

Attrition 
Created: 07/18/2019 • Last updated: 07/31/2019 

Report changes in teacher and administrator staffing. 

Instructions for completing the Classroom Teacher and Administrator Attrition Tables 

Charter schools must complete the tables titled 2018-2019 Classroom Teacher and 

Administrator Attrition to report changes in teacher and administrator staffing 

during the 2018-2019 school year. Please provide the full time equivalent (FTE) of 

staff on June 30, 2018; the FTE for any departed staff from July 1, 2018 through June 

30, 2019; the FTE for added staff from July 1, 2018 through June 30, 2019; and the 

FTE of staff added in newly created positions from July 1, 2018 through June 30, 2019 

using the tables provided. 

1. Classroom Teacher Attrition Table 

FTE Classroom FTE Classroom FTE Classroom 
Teachers on 
6/30/18 

Teachers 
Departed 7/1/18
 6/30/19 

Teachers Filling
Vacant Positions 
7/1/18  6/30/19 

18 4 4 

2. Administrator Position Attrition Table 

FTE 
Administrative 
Positions on 
6/30/18 

2 

FTE 
Administrators 
Departed 7/1/18
 6/30/19 

1 

FTE 
Administrators 
Filling Vacant
Positions 7/1/18
 6/30/19 

1 

FTE Classroom FTE of 
Teachers Added Classroom 
in New Positions Teachers on 
7/1/18 6/30/19 6/3019 

5 23 

FTE FTE 
Administrators Administrative 
Added in New Positions on 
Positions 7/1/18
6/30/19 

6/30/19 

0 2 

1 / 2 



	 	

	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	

	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

		
	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	

	

3. Tell your school's story 

Charter schools may provide additional information in this section of the Annual 
Report about their respective teacher and administrator attrition rates as some 

teacher or administrator departures do not reflect advancement or movement within 

the charter school networks. Schools may provide additional detail to reflect a 

teacher’s advancement up the ladder to a leadership position within the network or 

an administrator’s movement to lead a new network charter school. 

(No response) 

4. Charter schools must ensure that all prospective employees receive clearance 

through the NYSED Office of School Personnel Review and Accountability (OSPRA) 

prior to employment. After an employee has been cleared, schools are required to 

maintain proof of such clearance in the file of each employee. For the safety of all 
students, charter schools must take immediate steps to terminate the employment of 

individuals who have been denied clearance. Once the employees have been 

terminated, the school must terminate the request for clearance in the TEACH 

system. 

Have all employees have been cleared through the NYSED TEACH system? 

Yes 

5. For perspective or current employees whose clearance has been denied, have you 

terminated their employment and removed them from the TEACH system? 

Not Applicable 

Thank you 

2 / 2 



	 	

	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	
	 	 	

	 	 	 	
	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	

	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	

	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	
	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	

	

Entry 12 Uncertified Teachers 
Created: 07/18/2019 • Last updated: 07/31/2019 

Instructions for Reporting Percent of Uncertified Teachers 

The table below is reflective of the information collected through the online portal for 
compliance with New York State Education Law 2854(3)(a-1) for teaching staff 
qualifications. Enter the relevant full time equivalent (FTE) count of teachers in each 

column. For example, a school with 20 full time teachers and 5 half time teachers 

would have an FTE count of 22.5. If more than one column applies to a particular 
teacher, please select one column for the FTE count. Please do not include 

paraprofessionals, such as teacher assistants. 

FTE count of uncertified teachers on 6/30/18, and each uncertified teacher should be 

counted only once. 

1. Total FTE count of uncertified teachers (6 30 19) 

2. FTE count of uncertified teachers with at least three years
of elementary, middle or secondary classroom teaching
experience (6 30 19) 

3. FTE count of uncertified teachers who are tenured or 
tenure track college faculty (6 30 19) 

4. FTE count of uncertified teachers with two years of Teach
for America experience (6 30 19) 

5. FTE count of uncertified teachers with exceptional
business, professional, artistic, athletic, or military
experience (6 30 19) 

6. FTE count of uncertified teachers who do not fit into any
of the prior four categories (6 30 19) 

FTE Count of All Uncertified 

Teachers as of 6/30/19 

1 

FTE Count of All Certified 

Teachers as of 6/30/19 

22 

Thank you. 

FTE Count 

1 

0 

0 

0 

0 

1 
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Organizational Chart 

Board of Trustees 

Head of School 

    Director of Operations 

Administrative Student Support Literacy Coach K-6 Teachers Special Subject 
Assistant Coordinator Teachers (art, music, 

Inquiry Coach Special Education physical education) 
Receptionist Social Worker Teachers 

Library/Media 
Facilities Manager Nurse RTI Specialists Specialist 

(Custodian) 
ESL Teacher(s) 

Substitute Teachers 








